
MASSACHUSETTS EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

DISASTER RECOVERY UNIT

MEMA



AGENDA

 Requests for Information (RFI)

 Documentation Requirements and Examples

 COVID19 Guidance 

 Public Assistance Appeal Process

 Questions and Closing



OBJECTIVES & GOALS

 What leads to Request’s for Information (RFI’s)?

 Understanding Documentation Requirement Expectations and Examples

 FEMA Denied My Funding….Now What?



REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
WHAT IS COMMONLY REQUESTED IN AN RFI?



MOST COMMON REQUESTS IN AN RFI

Request

1. Reconciliation of costs

2. Missing supporting documentation

3. Costs need further justification to determine 
eligibility

Response

1. Ensure that all cost summaries provided tie to the 
costs entered into the Streamlined Application in 
Grants Portal

2. Provide missing documentation by uploading to 
Grants Portal or submitting it to your Project 
Coordinator for upload

3. Provide a detailed narrative explaining how the 
costs were necessary as a direct result of the 
disaster



DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS & EXAMPLES
WHAT DO I NEED TO SUBMIT?



BEFORE SUBMISSION - DETERMINING COST

1. Identify and collect your source documents for each cost type
a) Labor Costs – Timesheets, Activity Logs, Payroll Documentation

b) Equipment Costs – Activity Logs, Timesheets, Work Orders

c) Material Costs – Work Orders, Invoices, Receipts, Proof of Payment

d) Contractor Costs – Purchase Orders/Contracts, Invoices, Proof of Payment

2. Create a summary record for each cost type using the source documents

3. Fill out the MEMA Summary Workbook
Want to Learn More 

About the MEMA 
Summary 

Workbook? 

Visit our website here
to view guidance!

https://www.mass.gov/info-details/covid-19-federal-disaster-declaration#webinars-


BEFORE SUBMISSION - DETERMINING COST



STREAMLINED APPLICATION COSTS

 Copy the cost amounts of each cost category from your MEMA Summary 
Workbook into your FEMA Streamlined Application in Grants Portal.

Want to Learn More 
About the MEMA 

Summary 
Workbook? 

Visit our website here
to view guidance!

https://www.mass.gov/info-details/covid-19-federal-disaster-declaration#webinars-


DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS
WHAT NEEDS TO BE UPLOADED TO YOUR APPLICATION

SMALL PROJECT DOCUMENTATION
from $3,300 - $131,100

LARGE PROJECT DOCUMENTATION
equal to or exceed $131,100

• Electronic Streamlined Project Application
• MEMA Workbook (Summary Log)
• Subrecipient Small Project Certification Form
• Procurement Policy
• Pay Policy & Applicable Union Contracts 

• Electronic Streamlined Project Application
• MEMA Workbook (Summary Log)
• Procurement Policy
• Pay Policy & Applicable Union Contracts
• Force Account Labor

• Time Sheets
• Proof of Payment

• Force Account Equipment
• Proof of Ownership 
• Operator Time Sheets & Logs

• Materials & Supplies
• Invoices/Receipts
• Proof of Payment
• Procurement Documentation

• Contracts
• Contract Agreements
• Invoices/Receipts
• Proof of Payment
• Procurement Documentation



SUPPORTING COSTS - EXAMPLES

Policies
• Purchase Policy
• Payroll Policy
• Personnel Policy
• Insurance Policies

Procurement
• Solicitation for Bids
• Bid Documents
• Bid Tabulations
• Price Analysis
• & etc.

Proof of 
Payment
• Bank Statement
• Payroll Register
• Cancelled Checks
• Payment Voucher



UPLOADING SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

 Upload documentation to grants portal

 Ensure the source documents used to reach your claim amounts are included

Want to Learn More 
About Uploading 

Documents to 
Grants Portal? 

Click here to view 
guidance!

https://www.mass.gov/info-details/covid-19-federal-disaster-declaration#webinars-


MEMA & FEMA REVIEWS
WHAT HAPPENS AFTER I SUBMIT AN APPLICATION?



SIMPLIFIED PUBLIC ASSISTANCE PROCESS

Step 1 – Streamlined Application Submission
Applicants must complete the streamlined application, input all costs they want to claim for public assistance, and upload 
appropriate documentation.

Step 2 – State Preliminary Review
MEMA performs an application review, tying out cost totals and confirming supporting documentation.

Step 3 – FEMA Formulation and Final Review
FEMA reviews the streamlined application and formulates a project based upon the information provided. 

Step 4 – State Final Review
MEMA performs a full validation review confirming all submitted costs have supporting documentation in 
accordance with rules and regulation.

Step 5 – Applicant Review
• Applicant reviews the project to confirm agreeance with what was written and approved within the project.



FORCE ACCOUNT LABOR

Review Step Examples
1. Tie Source Document to Summary

2. Confirm Activity is within Scope of Work

3. Confirm Pay Rates

4. Confirm a Breakout of Fringe Benefits

5. Confirmed Overtime & Fringe is Consistent with 
Subrecipient’s Payroll Policy

6. Confirm pay rates are not contingent upon federal 
funding or arbitrarily increased

7. Verify Proof of Payment

Documentation
1. Timesheet

2. Activity Log

3. Payroll Register / Bank Statement

4. Fringe Benefit Breakout

i. Individual 

ii. Group

5. Payroll Policy



LABOR TIMESHEET EXAMPLE

1. Key Timekeeping Attributes
1. Tracking by days and hours
2. Tracking Activities



LABOR PAYROLL REGISTER EXAMPLE

1. Straight regular/overtime rates claimed within your summaries should tie back to your payroll register/pay stub 
documentation
1. Pay Rate Example

1. $24.01 * 1.5 = $36.015/hr
2. $1008.42 / 28 hours = $36.015/hr



LABOR PAYROLL REGISTER EXAMPLE



FORCE ACCOUNT EQUIPMENT

Review Steps Example
1. Verify within SoW

2. Review Equipment List 

3. Review Ownership Documentation

4. Verify Hourly Rates 

5. Verify Operator Hours

Supporting Documents
1. Timesheet

2. Equipment Ownership Documentation

i. Title

ii. Invoice with Proof of Payment

iii. Equipment Listing (Equipment Schedule)



MATERIALS

Review Steps

1. Verify Materials in Scope of Work 

2. Compare Work Order/ Picking Ticket to claimed materials

3. Review Inventory Listings 

4. Review Purchase Policy (If applicable)

5. Review Purchase Order/Fees to Invoice

6. Validate Cost of Pre-Existing Inventory (If applicable)

Force Account Materials (Stock)

1. Material Summary

2. Historical Costs – Invoice

3. Inventory Listing

4. Work Order, Picking Tickets

Purchased Materials

1. Material Summary

2. Purchase Order

3. Invoice

4. Proof of Payment

5. Procurement Documentation



CONTRACT COSTS

Review Steps

1. Verify Procurement

2. Reconcile Invoices

3. Compare Fee Structure to Invoices

4. Compare Goods/Services to PW SoW
a. 100% Complete Projects

5. Dates of Work are within Period of Performance 

6. Confirm Proof of Payment

Documentation

1. Invoices

2. Proof of Payment

i. Cancelled Checks

ii. Bank Statements

3. Contract or Written Agreement

4. Procurement Information

5. Purchasing Policy



EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT REVIEW

Review Steps

1. Review procurement policy

2. Ensure contract is based on an eligible fee 
structure (i.e. no cost plus contracts)

3. Verify all required contract provisions are included 
in the contract

4. Verify a cost or price analysis was performed (if 
over the simplified acquisition threshold –
currently $250k)

Documentation

1. Procurement Policy

2. Justification for using a noncompetitive 
procurement 

1. MEMA Emergency Procurement Form

3. A cost or price analysis (if over the simplified 
acquisition threshold – currently $250k)

4. A copy of the signed contract or agreement
1. Contract should include all required contract provisions



CONTRACT 
PROVISIONS



COVID-19 GUIDANCE
WHAT CAN I GET REIMBURSED FOR?



MAJOR DECLARATION
FEMA-4496-DR-MA

DECLARATION DATE: March 27, 2020

INCIDENT DATE: January 20, 2020 and continuing

DECLARED COUNTIES: All Massachusetts Counties

AUTHORIZED DISASTER ASSISTANCE:   FEMA Public Assistance Program

Category B - FEMA Public Assistance Program



ELIGIBILITY PERIODS

Initial Eligibility
Ongoing Eligibility
Eligibility Under Updated Policies

Links to Guidance:

Want to Learn More on 
Cost Eligibility? 

Visit our website here to 
view our training!

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-09/fema_eligible-emergency-protecitve-measures-for-covid_fact-sheet_archived.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-09/fema_public-assistance-eligibility-for-covid_policy_9-1-2020.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_covid-19-pandemic-safe-opening-operation-work-eligible-public-assistance-interim-policy.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/webinars-for-dr-4496-covid-19-federal-disaster-declaration-in-massachusetts


ELIGIBILITY: SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 – JANUARY 20, 2021

 Eligible Emergency Work: 
emergency actions taken to 
directly respond to COVID-19. 

 Does not include school re-
opening or operation costs

Click HERE for FEMA guidance.

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-09/fema_public-assistance-eligibility-for-covid_policy_9-1-2020.pdf


ONGOING GUIDANCE: SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 – JANUARY 20, 2021

Activities are eligible for 
reimbursement ONLY if the entity 
has the legal responsibility!



ELIGIBILITY: JANUARY 21, 2021 – SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

 Supplemental to September 1st 

2020 policy

 Eligible Public Facilities

 Click HERE for FEMA guidance.

FEMA may provide assistance to all eligible PA Applicants, including SLTTs and 
eligible PNPs, for the following measures implemented to facilitate the safe opening 
and operation of all eligible facilities in response to COVID-19 declared events:

a. Purchase and distribution of face masks, including cloth face coverings, and 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE).

b. Cleaning and disinfection, in accordance with CDC guidance or that of an 
appropriate Public Health official available at the time the work was 
completed, including the purchase and provision of necessary supplies and 
equipment in excess of the Applicant’s regularly budgeted costs. 

c. COVID-19 diagnostic testing. 
d. Screening and temperature scanning, including, but not limited to, the 

purchase and distribution of hand-held temperature measuring devices or 
temperature screening equipment. 

e. Acquisition and installation of temporary physical barriers, such as plexiglass 
barriers and screens/dividers, and signage to support social distancing, such 
as floor decals. 

f. Purchase and storage of PPE and other supplies listed in this section based 
on projected needs. 

Want to Learn More on 
Opening Guidance? 

Visit our website here to 
view our training!

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_covid-19-pandemic-safe-opening-operation-work-eligible-public-assistance-interim-policy.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/webinars-for-dr-4496-covid-19-federal-disaster-declaration-in-massachusetts


APPEALS PROCESS
WHAT HAPPENS IF FEMA DENIES MY COSTS?



APPEALS PROCESS

 FEMA will first issue a Request for Information, i.e. please provide a 
narrative on how increase construction costs is not an increased 
operating cost.

 FEMA will review additional information submitted by applicant in 
response to RFI. If FEMA determines that the costs are ineligible or 
not supported by appropriate documentation- a DETERMINATION 
MEMO (DM) will be issued via FEMA Grants Portal.

 Grants Portal will generate a notification email. Once applicant logs 
onto Grants Portal and reviews DM, the System will date and time 
stamp the opening of that document. This will be the start of the 
applicant’s 60 day window. 



CRITICAL DEADLINES
FIRST APPEAL

1. Applicant Deadline

Submit appeal to MEMA Project Coordinator within 60 days of reviewing DM on Grants Portal.

2. MEMA Deadline

Forward appeal with recommendation to FEMA Region within 60 days of receiving appeal from applicant.

3. FEMA Deadline

Must make a written decision on appeal or issue a request for information within 90 days of receiving appeal 
from MEMA.

SECOND APPEAL

1. Applicant Deadline

Submit second appeal to MEMA Project Coordinator within 60 days of receiving FEMA’s first appeal decision.

2. MEMA Deadline

Forward appeal with recommendation to FEMA HQ within 60 days of receiving second appeal from applicant.

3. FEMA Deadline

Must make a written decision on appeal or issue a request for information within 90 days of receiving second 
appeal from MEMA

Want to Learn About 
Arbitration Options? 

Visit our website here to 
view guidance!

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-07/fema_DRRA-1219-public-assistance-arbitration-right_fact-sheet.pdf


WHAT NEEDS TO BE IN MY APPEAL

 The written appeal letter should be on official letterhead and addressed to: 
Samantha Phillips, Director
Massachusetts Emergency Management Agency
400 Worcester Road
Framingham, MA 0170

 The Subrecipient must include the following in their appeal:
 The facts surrounding the damage incurred, development of the Request for Public Assistance or the Project 

Worksheet, and ineligibility determination;
 Documented justification supporting the Subrecipient’s position;
 Specify the monetary figure in dispute; and
 Cite the provisions in federal law, regulation, or policy with which the Subrecipient believes the initial action 

was inconsistent.



STATE  PUBLIC  ASSISTANCE  CONTACTS

 MA Public Assistance Officer

Erica.Heidelberg@mass.gov

 MA Public Assistance Program Coordinator – Complex Lane Projects

Lorraine.Eddy@mass.gov

MA Public Assistance Program Coordinator – Standard Lane Projects

Amanda.Campen@mass.gov

 Questions?

https://www.mass.gov/info-details/covid-19-federal-disaster-declaration#questions-

Disaster.Recovery@mass.gov

mailto:Erica.Heidelberg@mass.gov
mailto:Lorraine.Eddy@mass.gov
mailto:Amanda.Campen@mass.gov
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/covid-19-federal-disaster-declaration#questions-
mailto:Disaster.Recovery@mass.gov
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